
_________________________________________________________________ 
Managed by: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower Boulevard, Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 

Email: CENMDadmin@PCGI.com  

CENTERRA METROPOLITAN DISTRICTS NOS. 1-5 

www.centerramd.live 

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF REGULAR MEETING 

Board of Directors Office     Term Expiration 

Kim Perry President    May 2025 

David Spaeth     Vice President    May 2027 

Josh Kane  Treasurer & Secretary  May 2025 

VACANT        Director    May 2027 

Tim DePeder Assistant Secretary & Assistant Treasurer    May 2025 

DATE: July 20, 2023 (Thursday) 

TIME: 1:00 P.M.   

PLACE:          MS TEAMS and Teleconference 

Click here to join the meeting (Please press the control key and click to access hyperlink) 

+1 720-721-3140; Conference ID: 850 488 53# (If joining the meeting by phone)

I. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS

A. Call to Order.

B. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Disclosure of any potential Conflicts of

Interest.

C. Approval of Agenda. (Pages 1-2)
D. Public Comment. Comments are limited to Three (3) minutes per speaker.

E. Director Comments.

II. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of Minutes – June 15, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. (Pages 3-7)
B. Ratification of Payables. (Pages 8-16)
C. Review and Consider unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending May 31, 2023.

(Pages 17-26)
D. Ratification of Contract Modifications. (Page 27)

III. DISTRICT MANAGER ITEMS

A. District Managers’ Report. (Pages 28-29)

IV. CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE ITEMS

A. District Capital Infrastructure Report and District Project Manager Update. (Pages 30-34)
B. Capital Fund Summary and Capital Needs Assessment Review.

(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)

V. FINANCIAL ITEMS

A. Finance Manager’s Report. (Pages 35-37)
B. Consider Approval to File for Extension of District No. 1 2022 Audit Deadline.

1

mailto:CENMDadmin@PCGI.com
http://www.centerramd.live/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDE5ZTg4YzUtMjc0Ny00MzhmLTk0NTAtMDgwMjBhOWM1ODM2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2295d90e40-ea92-4b9b-bab0-f6f9c6fe1c1d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%226e2dde4d-17e3-42b3-8eca-0f7112f80ece%22%7d
tel:+1%20720-721-3140,,73281782


Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

July 20, 2023 

 

_________________________________________________________________ 
Managed by: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower Boulevard, Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 

Email: CENMDadmin@pcgi.com  

VI. LEGAL ITEMS 

A. CDOT I-25 Improvements and Hwy 34 Interchange Landscape Improvements Update 

and Consider Approval of CDOT I-25 Improvements and Hwy 34 Interchange Landscape 

Improvements Change Order.  

 

VII. ITEMS FROM DIRECTORS  

 

VIII. OTHER MATTERS 

 

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

A. Executive session pursuant to Section 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S. to receive legal advice 

related to public improvement funding within urban renewal area. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

***The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for August 17, 2023*** 

2



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

 

  

  
  Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

Meeting Minutes 2023-06-15 

1 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

MINUTES OF THE COORDINATED 

REGULAR MEETING OF 

CENTERRA METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-5 

 

HELD 

June 15, 2023 

 

 The Boards of Directors of Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 held a coordinated regular 

meeting, open to the public, via MS Teams at 1:00 p.m., Thursday, June 15, 2023.  

 

 

ATTENDANCE Directors in Attendance: 

Kim Perry, President 

David Spaeth, Vice President  

Tim DePeder, Assistant Secretary & Assistant Treasurer  

Josh Kane, Treasurer/Assistant Secretary 

 

Also in Attendance:  

Alan Pogue; Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 

Jim Niemczyk, Jeff Breidenbach, Amanda Dwight, and Mike McBride; 

McWhinney 

Jason Newsome; Civitas Resources. 

Sarah Bromley, Bryan Newby, Jordan Wood, Casey Milligan, Dillon 

Gamber, and Brendan Campbell; Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

 

CALL MEETING TO 

ORDER 

The Coordinated Regular meeting was convened at 1:04 p.m. by Director 

Perry, noting that a quorum was present. The Directors in attendance confirmed 

their qualifications to serve. 

__________ 

 

COMBINED 

MEETING 

 

The Districts are meeting in a combined Board meeting. Unless otherwise 

noted, the matters set forth below shall be deemed to be the actions of the 

Centerra Metropolitan District No. 1, with concurrence by the Centerra 

Metropolitan Districts Nos. 2, 3, 4, and 5. 

__________ 

 

CONFLICT OF  

INTEREST  

DISCLOSURE 

Alan Pogue, legal counsel, stated that notices of potential conflicts of interest 

for all Board Members were filed with the Colorado Secretary of State’s 

Office, disclosing potential conflicts as all Board Members are employees of 

McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc., which is associated with the primary 

landowners and developer within the Districts. Mr. Pogue advised the Boards 

that pursuant to Colorado law, certain disclosures by the Board Members might 

be required prior to taking official action at a meeting. The Boards reviewed 

the agenda for the meeting, following which each Board Member present 

confirmed the contents of the written disclosures previously made stating the 

3



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

 

  

  
  Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

Meeting Minutes 2023-06-15 

2 

fact and summary nature of any matters as required under Colorado law to 

permit official action to be taken at the meeting. Additionally, the Boards 

determined that the participation of the members present was necessary to 

obtain a quorum or otherwise enable the Boards to act.  

__________ 

 

APPROVAL OF 

AGENDA 

The Boards considered the agenda. Ms. Bromley and Director Perry requested 

amendments to the agenda. Upon motion duly made by Director Spaeth, 

seconded by Director DePeder and, upon vote, it was unanimously 

 

 RESOLVED to approve the agenda, as amended to remove the 

following item: 

 

          IV. C. 4. Consider Approval of Work Order 2023-01 with MRES for 

District Project Management Services ($TBD). 

 

           FURTHER RESOLVED to move item IV. Capital Infrastructure 

Items to before item III. District Manager Items. 

__________ 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

There were no comments made by members of the public.  

__________ 

 

DIRECTOR 

COMMENTS 

 

There were no comments made by the Directors of the Board. 

__________ 

CONSENT AGENDA The Boards considered the following items on the consent agenda: 

 

A. Approval of Minutes – May 16, 2023, Special Meeting Minutes and 

May 18, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

B. Ratification of Payables. 

C. Review and Consider unaudited Financial Statements for the period 

ending April 30, 2023. 

D. Ratification of Contract Modifications. 

 

Upon motion duly made by Director DePeder, seconded by Director Spaeth, 

and, upon vote, it was unanimously 

 

 RESOLVED to approve all items on the consent agenda, as presented. 

__________ 

 

DISTRICT MANAGER 

ITEMS 

District Manager’s Report: Ms. Bromley presented the District Manager’s 

Report to the Boards and answered questions. 

 

Monthly Operations Update: Mr. Gamber presented the monthly Operations 

Update to the Boards and answered questions. 

4



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

 

  

  
  Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

Meeting Minutes 2023-06-15 

3 

__________ 

 

CAPITAL 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

ITEMS 

District Capital Infrastructure Report and Project Manager Update: Mr. 

Milligan and Mr. McBride reviewed the District Capital Infrastructure Report 

and provided a District Project Manager update to the Boards and answered 

questions.  

 

Capital Fund Summary and Capital Needs Assessment Review: Mr. Milligan, 

Mr. Niemczyk, and Mr. Breidenbach reviewed the Capital Fund Summary and 

Capital Needs Assessment with the Boards and answered questions.  

 

Kendall Parkway Underpass/Bus Stop Enhancements (CFS #13): Mr. 

Milligan, Mr. Newsome, and Mr. Breidenbach presented to the Boards the Bid 

Summary Memorandum for the Kendall Parkway Underpass/Bus Stop 

Enhancements Phase 1. It was the recommendation to award the contract to J-

2 Contracting for the Kendall Parkway Underpass Bus Station Enhancements 

Phase 1 as the most qualified bidder and approving a construction contract in 

the amount of $2,075,411.09. Following review and discussion, upon a motion 

duly made by Director DePeder, seconded by Director Kane, and upon vote, 

unanimously carried it was  

 

RESOLVED to award the contract to J-2 Contracting for the Kendall 

Parkway Underpass Bus Station Enhancements Phase in the amount of 

$2,075,411.09 

 

Amended Project Budget: Mr. Milligan presented to the Boards the request to 

amend the Amended Project Budget in the amount of $3,170,126.00 and 

answered questions. Following review and discussion, upon a motion duly 

made by Director Kane, seconded by Director DePeder, and upon vote, 

unanimously carried it was 

 

RESOLVED to approve the Amended Project Budget in the amount 

of $3,170,126.00, as presented. 

__________ 

 

FINANCIAL ITEMS Finance Manager’s Report: Mr. Campbell provided an update to the Boards 

and answered questions. 

__________ 

 

LEGAL ITEMS Resolution Regarding District Facilities, and in connection therewith, Rules for 

Use of Park Facilities, Application for First Amendment Demonstration 

Permit, and Event License Agreement: Mr. Pogue presented to the Boards the 

Resolution Regarding District Facilities, and in connection therewith, Rules for 

Use of Park Facilities, Application for First Amendment Demonstration 

Permit, and Event License Agreement and answered questions. Following 

5



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

 

  

  
  Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

Meeting Minutes 2023-06-15 

4 

review and discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Kane, seconded 

by Director DePeder, and upon vote, unanimously carried it was  

 

RESOLVED to approve the Resolution Regarding District Facilities, 

and in connection therewith, Rules for Use of Park Facilities, Application for 

First Amendment Demonstration Permit, and Event License Agreement with 

additional direction from District Management and Legal to make 

modifications based on updated research on local open and concealed carry 

ordinances.  

 

CDOT I-25 Improvements and Hwy 34 Interchange Landscape Improvements 

Update and Approval of CDOT I-25 Improvements and Hwy 34 Interchange 

Landscape Improvements Change Order: It was the consensus of the Boards to 

table this agenda item until the July 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting. 

__________ 

 

ITEMS FROM 

DIRECTORS 

There were no Items from Directors brought before the Boards.  

__________ 

 

OTHER MATTERS There were no Other Matters brought before the Boards. 

__________ 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Executive session, pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S., for the purpose of 

receiving legal advice from general counsel related to specific legal questions. 

 

Mr. Pogue advised the Boards that it was permitted, upon compliance with 

requisite statutory procedures under the Colorado Open Meetings Law, for the 

Boards to convene an executive session, pursuant to§ 24-6-402(4)(6), C.R.S., 

to conference with an attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice from 

general counsel related to specific legal questions. Upon motion duly made by 

Director Kane, seconded by Director DePeder and, upon vote, it was 

unanimously  

 

RESOLVED to convene an Executive Session, pursuant to § 24-6- 

402( 4 )(b ), C.R.S., to conference with an attorney for the purpose of receiving 

legal advice from general counsel related to specific legal questions.  

 

It is the 16th day of June 2023, and the time is 1:43 P.M. For the record, I, Kim 

Perry, am the presiding officer. This session is subject to the attorney client 

privilege and therefore, pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, is not being 

recorded. Also present at this Executive Session are Director Kane, Director 

Spaeth, and Director DePeder; Legal Counsel, Alan Pogue; Pinnacle 

Consulting Group Representatives Brendan Campbell and Sarah Bromley; 

McWhinney Constituents Jeff Breidenbach and Jim Niemczyk. 

 

6



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

 

  

  
  Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

Meeting Minutes 2023-06-15 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy  

of the minutes of the above-referenced meeting. 

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

 

      ___________________________________  

      Jordan Wood, Secretary for the Meeting 

This is an Executive Session for the following purpose: Receiving legal advice 

from general counsel related to specific legal questions.  

 

The Executive Session was adjourned at 2:21 P.M. All participants were in the 

Executive Session at adjournment. No action was taken in the Executive 

Session. 

 

__________ 

 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to come before the Boards, the meeting was 

adjourned at 2:21 P.M. 

__________ 

7



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

8070 6/19/2023 J-2 Contracting Co., Inc. CEN-KPUBSE 250,000.00

Total 8070 250,000.00

ACH 060623 001 6/6/2023 Bill.com Software - ACH 112.03

Total ACH 060623 001 112.03

ACH 061223 001 6/12/2023 Fort Collins-Loveland Water District Utilities - ACH 17.01

Total ACH 061223 001 17.01

ACH 061223 002 6/12/2023 Fort Collins-Loveland Water District Utilities - ACH 17.01

Total ACH 061223 002 17.01

ACH 062223 001 6/22/2023 Tim DePeder Director Fees 186.45

Total ACH 062223 001 186.45

ACH 062223 002 6/22/2023 Josh Kane Director Fees 186.45

Total ACH 062223 002 186.45

ACH 062223 003 6/22/2023 David Spaeth Director Fees 186.45

Total ACH 062223 003 186.45

ACH 062323 001 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 29.55

Total ACH 062323 001 29.55

ACH 062323 002 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 74.92

Total ACH 062323 002 74.92

ACH 062323 003 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 74.92

Total ACH 062323 003 74.92

ACH 062323 004 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 37.01

Total ACH 062323 004 37.01

ACH 062323 005 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 264.37

Total ACH 062323 005 264.37

ACH 062323 006 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 37.49

Total ACH 062323 006 37.49

8



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062323 007 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 52.79

Total ACH 062323 007 52.79

ACH 062323 008 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 37.01

Total ACH 062323 008 37.01

ACH 062323 009 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 1,822.38

Total ACH 062323 009 1,822.38

ACH 062323 010 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 2,932.49

Total ACH 062323 010 2,932.49

ACH 062323 011 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 312.70

Total ACH 062323 011 312.70

ACH 062323 012 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 74.92

Total ACH 062323 012 74.92

ACH 062323 013 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 85.99

Total ACH 062323 013 85.99

ACH 062323 014 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 31.45

Total ACH 062323 014 31.45

ACH 062323 015 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 59.62

Total ACH 062323 015 59.62

ACH 062323 016 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 152.25

Total ACH 062323 016 152.25

ACH 062323 017 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 94.62

Total ACH 062323 017 94.62

ACH 062323 018 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 64.93

Total ACH 062323 018 64.93

ACH 062323 019 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 24.89

Total ACH 062323 019 24.89

9



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062323 020 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 70.97

Total ACH 062323 020 70.97

ACH 062323 021 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 29.20

Total ACH 062323 021 29.20

ACH 062323 022 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 48.60

Total ACH 062323 022 48.60

ACH 062323 023 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 63.63

Total ACH 062323 023 63.63

ACH 062323 024 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 290.12

Total ACH 062323 024 290.12

ACH 062323 025 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 36.89

Total ACH 062323 025 36.89

ACH 062323 026 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 159.31

Total ACH 062323 026 159.31

ACH 062323 027 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 7.07

Total ACH 062323 027 7.07

ACH 062323 028 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 29.79

Total ACH 062323 028 29.79

ACH 062323 029 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 29.20

Total ACH 062323 029 29.20

ACH 062323 030 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 66.66

Total ACH 062323 030 66.66

ACH 062323 031 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 1,844.45

Total ACH 062323 031 1,844.45

ACH 062323 032 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 19.31

Total ACH 062323 032 19.31

10



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062323 033 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 104.32

Total ACH 062323 033 104.32

ACH 062323 034 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 49.32

Total ACH 062323 034 49.32

ACH 062323 035 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 29.67

Total ACH 062323 035 29.67

ACH 062323 036 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 224.71

Total ACH 062323 036 224.71

ACH 062323 037 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 113.36

Total ACH 062323 037 113.36

ACH 062323 038 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 2,859.35

Total ACH 062323 038 2,859.35

ACH 062323 039 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 91.70

Total ACH 062323 039 91.70

ACH 062323 040 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 434.79

Total ACH 062323 040 434.79

ACH 062323 041 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 31.45

Total ACH 062323 041 31.45

ACH 062323 042 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 32.55

Total ACH 062323 042 32.55

ACH 062323 043 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 31.66

Total ACH 062323 043 31.66

ACH 062323 044 6/23/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 31.66

Total ACH 062323 044 31.66

ACH 062623 002 6/26/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 51.35

Total ACH 062623 002 51.35

11



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062623 003 6/26/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 204.22

Total ACH 062623 003 204.22

ACH 062623 004 6/26/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 19.31

Total ACH 062623 004 19.31

ACH 062723 001 6/27/2023 All Sweep, Inc. Sweeping 490.00

Total ACH 062723 001 490.00

ACH 062723 002 6/27/2023 Affordable Pest Control Pest Control 450.00

Total ACH 062723 002 450.00

ACH 062723 003 6/27/2023 DaVinci Sign Systems, Inc Monumentation Signage O&M 300.00

Total ACH 062723 003 300.00

ACH 062723 004 6/27/2023 Tim DePeder Director Fees 186.45

Total ACH 062723 004 186.45

ACH 062723 005 6/27/2023 Development Planning & Finance Group, Inc. Engineering and Other Prof Services 116.25

Total ACH 062723 005 116.25

ACH 062723 006 6/27/2023 Susanne Durkin-Schindler Monthly PIF/Valuations/URA Revision 93.75

Total ACH 062723 006 93.75

ACH 062723 007 6/27/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc. Irrigation Repair & Upgrade 341.34

ACH 062723 007 6/27/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc. Manicured Landscaping O&M 31,885.85

Total ACH 062723 007 32,227.19

ACH 062723 008 6/27/2023 Fiske Electric Lighting and Electrical O&M 1,118.56

Total ACH 062723 008 1,118.56

ACH 062723 009 6/27/2023 GreenEarth Midwest, LLC Irrigation Repair & Upgrade 2,332.99

ACH 062723 009 6/27/2023 GreenEarth Midwest, LLC Manicured Landscaping O&M 3,584.00

ACH 062723 009 6/27/2023 GreenEarth Midwest, LLC Native Area O&M 3,678.00

Total ACH 062723 009 9,594.99

ACH 062723 010 6/27/2023 High Plains Environmental Center Chapungu O&M 787.50

Total ACH 062723 010 787.50

12



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062723 011 6/27/2023 High Plains Environmental Center Chapungu O&M 20,182.84

Total ACH 062723 011 20,182.84

ACH 062723 012 6/27/2023 Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. Legal 13,636.00

Total ACH 062723 012 13,636.00

ACH 062723 013 6/27/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc Site Cleanup 67.43

Total ACH 062723 013 67.43

ACH 062723 014 6/27/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc Regulatory and Wayfinding Signage O&M 33.34

Total ACH 062723 014 33.34

ACH 062723 015 6/27/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc MRES Invoice 4,950.00

Total ACH 062723 015 4,950.00

ACH 062723 016 6/27/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc Regulatory and Wayfinding Signage O&M 13,604.25

Total ACH 062723 016 13,604.25

ACH 062723 017 6/27/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc Chapungu Hardscape/Building Maintenance 400.08

Total ACH 062723 017 400.08

ACH 062723 018 6/27/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc McWhinney Billback 10,034.48

Total ACH 062723 018 10,034.48

ACH 062723 019 6/27/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc Chapungu Marketing 1,608.00

Total ACH 062723 019 1,608.00

ACH 062723 020 6/27/2023 Norfield Development Partners, LLC Utilities - Location Notification 1,423.00

Total ACH 062723 020 1,423.00

ACH 062723 021 6/27/2023 OLM, Inc. Manicured Landscaping Inspection/Consulting 3,784.80

Total ACH 062723 021 3,784.80

ACH 062723 022 6/27/2023 Kim Perry Director Fees 369.40

Total ACH 062723 022 369.40

ACH 062723 023 6/27/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. District Mgmt/Facilities/Finance 39,977.23

Total ACH 062723 023 39,977.23

13



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062723 024 6/27/2023 David Spaeth Director Fees 186.45

Total ACH 062723 024 186.45

ACH 062723 025 6/27/2023 SWPPP Colorado, LLC Storm Structure Maintenance 1,740.00

Total ACH 062723 025 1,740.00

ACH 062723 026 6/27/2023 Utility Notification Center of Colorado Utilities - Location Notification 795.93

Total ACH 062723 026 795.93

ACH 062823 001 6/28/2023 Amans Painting LLC CEN - BLAS 13,243.28

Total ACH 062823 001 13,243.28

ACH 062823 002 6/28/2023 Bath Garden Center & Nursery Inc. CEN - PCL504PH2 117,269.68

Total ACH 062823 002 117,269.68

ACH 062823 003 6/28/2023 Civitas, Inc. CEN  - KPUBSE 1,582.50

Total ACH 062823 003 1,582.50

ACH 062823 004 6/28/2023 CMS Environmental Solutions, LLC CEN - NWARPH2 395.00

Total ACH 062823 004 395.00

ACH 062823 005 6/28/2023 CMS Environmental Solutions, LLC CEN - BLAS 205.00

Total ACH 062823 005 205.00

ACH 062823 006 6/28/2023 CMS Environmental Solutions, LLC CEN - PCL504PH2 415.00

Total ACH 062823 006 415.00

ACH 062823 007 6/28/2023 Connell Resources, Inc. CEN - PCL504PH2 48.50

Total ACH 062823 007 48.50

ACH 062823 008 6/28/2023 CWC Consulting Group CEN - KPRMCP 20,297.55

Total ACH 062823 008 20,297.55

ACH 062823 009 6/28/2023 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig CEN - CAP 7,493.75

Total ACH 062823 009 7,493.75

ACH 062823 010 6/28/2023 Fort Collins Coloradoan CEN - PCL504PH2 106.36

ACH 062823 010 6/28/2023 Fort Collins Coloradoan CEN - PCL504PH3 86.61

Total ACH 062823 010 192.97

14



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062823 011 6/28/2023 Harris Kocher Smith CEN - PCL504 PH3 1,606.15

Total ACH 062823 011 1,606.15

ACH 062823 012 6/28/2023 Harris Kocher Smith CEN - PCL504 PH3 11,291.70

Total ACH 062823 012 11,291.70

ACH 062823 013 6/28/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc CEN - CAP 903.75

Total ACH 062823 013 903.75

ACH 062823 014 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - PT 980.00

Total ACH 062823 014 980.00

ACH 062823 015 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - KPUBSE 3,075.00

Total ACH 062823 015 3,075.00

ACH 062823 016 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - BLANLAND 1,087.50

Total ACH 062823 016 1,087.50

ACH 062823 017 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - BLAS 450.00

Total ACH 062823 017 450.00

ACH 062823 018 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - CAP 900.00

Total ACH 062823 018 900.00

ACH 062823 019 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - MG5S 750.00

Total ACH 062823 019 750.00

ACH 062823 020 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - PCL504 PH2 825.00

Total ACH 062823 020 825.00

ACH 062823 021 6/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. CEN - PCL504 PH3 2,250.00

Total ACH 062823 021 2,250.00

ACH 062823 022 6/28/2023 Prairie Mountain Media CEN - PCL504 PH3 116.16

Total ACH 062823 022 116.16

ACH 062823 023 6/28/2023 Prairie Mountain Media CEN - PCL504 PH3 113.00

Total ACH 062823 023 113.00

15



Centerra Metropolitan District

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/6/2023 Through 7/10/2023

Check # Check Date Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

ACH 062823 024 6/28/2023 Daily Reporter-Herald CEN - PCL504 PH3 113.00

Total ACH 062823 024 113.00

ACH 062823 025 6/28/2023 Roberts Excavation Corp. CEN - MG5S 825.00

Total ACH 062823 025 825.00

ACH 062823 026 6/28/2023 Waterwise Land and Waterscapes, Inc. CEN - BLKPLAND 6,156.00

ACH 062823 026 6/28/2023 Waterwise Land and Waterscapes, Inc. CEN - PCL301 31,371.85

Total ACH 062823 026 37,527.85

ACH 062923 001 6/29/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 75.74

Total ACH 062923 001 75.74

ACH 062923 002 6/29/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 2,281.98

Total ACH 062923 002 2,281.98

ACH 062923 003 6/29/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 45.00

Total ACH 062923 003 45.00

ACH 062923 004 6/29/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 45.72

Total ACH 062923 004 45.72

ACH 063023 001 6/30/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Dept Utilities - ACH 9,666.47

Total ACH 063023 001 9,666.47

Report Total 658,204.49

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



Contract Modifications for Board Ratification

Centerra Metropolitan District No. 1

Meyers Group 5th Subdivision  (CEN-MG5S)

Contractor:
Roberts Excavation Corporation

Contract #:
Cnt-01063

Modification Amount:
$825.00

Modification Date:
6 /6 /2023

Modification Description:
CO 5

Modification Scope:
Clean Out Irrigation Meter Vault at Byrd Drive

Contractor Signed Date:
6 /19/2023

District Signed Date:
6 /6 /2023

Payment Method:
Lump Sum

Centerra O&M  (CEN-OM)

Contractor:
Fiske Electric

Contract #:
Cnt-00557

Modification Amount:
$12,480.00

Modification Date:
6 /21/2023

Modification Description:
WO 2023-02

Modification Scope:
Monument Sign Lighting Conversion Services

Contractor Signed Date:
6 /22/2023

District Signed Date:
6 /22/2023

Payment Method:
Lump Sum

Printed:  7/10/2023 8:58:41 AM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  1/1/2023  to  7/10/2023

27



Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: (970) 685-2770 

Email: cenmdadmin@pcgi.com   

Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 

 
 

To:   Centerra Metropolitan District Board of Directors 

From:   Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Subject:  Managers’ Report 

Board Meeting Date: July 20, 2023 

 

 

General District Matters 

 

• Primary Contact: Please contact Sarah Bromley, District Manager, at sarahbromley@pcgi.com or 

cenmdadmin@pcgi.com for any District matters which include operations, Board of Directors relations, 

financial management, compliance, and constituent relations. 

 

• Client Service Team: Since the last board meeting, there have been no staff changes to the Client Service 

Team. 

 

• District Matters: The District’s management team executed District matters since the June 15, 2023, 

Board meeting. Monthly, District management provides the following services: 

o Adheres to administrative and compliance matters. 

o Processes monthly payables and financial reports. 

o Oversees District budget and operational expenditures. 

o Oversees District operations per the approved Service Plan and District needs.  

o Collaborates with legal counsel on legal matters. 

o Oversee preparation and distribution of board packets including agenda, minutes, reports, 

contracts, and agreements prior to board meetings. 

o The Manager consistently communicates with the Board including periodic status reports at each 

board meeting. 

 

• Management & Administration Updates & Activities: Recently the District’s management team has 

prioritized the following items:  

o Sounds of Centerra, a summer concert series located in Chapungu Sculpture Park, is scheduled 

for July 14th, 21st and 28th from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 

• Website Analytics: Website analytics allows management to review website activity throughout the year. 

 

Last Month YTD 

32 Visits 263 Visits 

32 Unique Visitors 225 Unique Visitors 

58 Page Views 707 Page Views 

 

• Compliance Matters: Annually, District Management ensures the District meets required statutory 

responsibilities and tracks compliance accordingly. 

Compliance Matters Responsible Due Date Completion 

File Boundary Map PCGI 01/01/2023 Completed 

28

mailto:cenmdadmin@pcgi.com
mailto:sarahbromley@pcgi.com
mailto:cenmdadmin@pcgi.com


Centerra Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: (970) 685-2770 

Email: cenmdadmin@pcgi.com   

Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 

Post Transparency Notice PCGI 01/15/2023 Completed 

File Certified Copy of Adopted 

Budget 
PCGI 01/31/2023 Completed 

Renew SDA Membership PCGI 03/01/2023 Completed 

File Audit Exemptions PCGI 03/31/2023 Completed 

Submit Audit to Governing Board PCGI 06/30/2023 Completed 

File Audit PCGI 07/30/2023  

File Annual Report PCGI 10/01/2023  

Draft 2024 Budgets Distributed to 

Board of Directors 
PCGI 10/15/2023  

Renew Property & Liability 

Insurance 
PCGI 12/01/2023  

Certify Mill Levies PCGI 12/15/2023  

Adopt Budget PCGI 12/31/2023  

Ensure Website Compliance PCGI 12/31/2023  

Payables PCGI/Board Monthly 
Sent to Board third week of 

the month 

 

Operations & Maintenance Updates & Activities 

 

• Previous Month Updates: 

o Initial irrigation repairs and improvements have been completed throughout the district system. 

o Assessment of trees/plants to be removed and replaced has been completed, removals to be 

completed in July as well as plant replacements as needed. Tree replacements to occur in 

September as best practice. 

o Tree trimming along RMA, other areas where needed completed early July. 

o June OLM inspection results are as follows (CMD: 94% BLA:92% Chapungu:97%). 

 

• Current Month Updates: 

o Another round of ROW, field, undeveloped areas mowing is scheduled for mid-July. 

o Preparing for concrete/truncated dome repairs project to begin early August. 

o Plant replacements, as needed, to be completed by early August. 

o Finalizing completion of backflow testing throughout district system. 

o Beginning preperations for 2024 O&M budget allocations, communicating with contractors on 

renewals, pricing, estimated costs for potential 2024 maintenance and projects needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1: plant replacement area Figure 2: ROW mowing area 

29

mailto:cenmdadmin@pcgi.com


 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

 
To:   Centerra Metropolitan District Board of Directors 
From:   Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
Subject:  District Capital Infrastructure Project Report 
Board Meeting Date: July 20, 2023 
 
BIDDING 
 

1. Centerra Parcel 504 Phase 3 (CFS #11) 
• The scope includes overlot grading, sanitary sewer, potable water, storm sewer, and 

roadway improvements to Hopper Lane. 
• The bid for this project has been postponed and bidding is anticipated to take place this 

fall.  
 

CONTRACING 
 

2. I-25 and HWY 34 Landscape Improvements (CFS #12) 
• The scope includes landscaping and irrigation at the I-25 and HWY 34 interchange and on 

the north side of HWY 34 west of I-25. 
• A construction contract with Bath, Inc. was approved at the April 20, 2023 board meeting.  

The District is finalizing the change order with CDOT and will complete the contract once 
the change order is signed.  Construction is anticipated to start this summer. 

 
CONSTRUCTION 
 

3. Kendall Parkway Underpass/Bus Stop Enhancements (CFS #13) 
• The scope includes enhancements to the pedestrian tunnel, landscaping, and irrigation at 

the mobility hub at Kendall Parkway and I-25. 
• A construction contract with J-2 Contracting and the design review for the wall panels has 

been started. 
 

4. Precision on the Tracks (CFS #17)  
• The scope includes landscaping, irrigation, and concrete sidewalks adjacent to Byrd Drive 

and Precision Drive. 
• A construction contract with Northstar Concrete has been finalized and construction is 

anticipated to start in July. 
• A construction contract with Waterwise Land and Waterscapes has been finalized and 

construction is anticipated to start in August. 
 

5. Myers Subdivision Landscaping and Sidewalk (CFS #18) 
• The scope includes landscaping, irrigation, and concrete sidewalks adjacent to Precision 

Drive. 
• A construction contract with Northstar Concrete has been finalized and construction is 

anticipated to start this fall. 
• A construction contract with Waterwise Land and Waterscapes has been finalized and 

construction is anticipated to start this fall. 
 

30



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

6. Myers Group 5th Subdivision Landscaping (CFS #5) 
• The scope includes landscaping and irrigation along Byrd Drive, Precision Drive, and I-25 

Frontage. 
• A construction contract with Waterwise Land and Waterscapes has been finalized and 

construction is anticipated to start in July. 
 

7. Centerra Parcel 301 Public Landscaping (CFS #9) 
• The scope includes landscaping and irrigation adjacent to 15th Street and Highway 34. 
• Waterwise Land and Waterscapes has completed all scopes of work and the District is 

working on scheduling an initial acceptance walk.  
 

8. Parcel 504 Phase 2 Public Infrastructure (CFS #10) 
• The scope includes water, storm sewer, and roadway improvements to Hopper Lane, 

Kendall Parkway and Sky Pond Drive. 
• An initial acceptance walk-through with the City of Loveland and Connell Resources took 

place on March 3, 2023.  Connell has corrected all punch list items and the District is 
awaiting the initial acceptance letter from the City of Loveland.   

 
9.  Parcel 504 Phase 2 Public Landscaping (CFS #10) 

• The scope includes landscaping and irrigation on Sky Pond Drive, Kendall Parkway, and 
the Central Green. 

• Bath, Inc. has completed the installation of the irrigation and anticipates the landscaping 
will be complete in the summer of 2023. 

 
WARRANTY 
 
 

10. Boyd Lake Avenue South Landscaping (CFS #7) 
• Landscape warranty expires on September 9, 2023.  A final acceptance walkthrough will 

be coordinated in August of 2023. 
 

11. Kendall Parkway and Boyd Lake Avenue Landscaping (CFS #15) 
• Landscape warranty expires on September 21, 2023. A final acceptance walkthrough will 

be coordinated in August of 2023. 
 

12. Parcel 301 Public Infrastructure (CFS #9) 
• City streets/storm warranty period expires on January 7, 2024. Final acceptance will be 

requested in December 2023.  
• City water/sewer warranty period expires on July 29, 2024. Final acceptance will be 

requested in June of 2024. 
 

13. Boyd Lake Avenue South (Hwy 34 to GLIC) (CFS #7) 
• City streets/storm warranty period expires on December 23, 2022. A final acceptance walk 

took place on November 4, 2022, and punch list items were identified.  The contractor has 
completed the punch list items and the District is awaiting the final acceptance letter from 
the City of Loveland.  

• City water/sewer warranty period expired on March 18, 2023. Final acceptance has been 
requested. 

 

31



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

14. Savanna 5th Subdivision Public Infrastructure (CFS #6) 
• City streets/storm warranty period expires on December 4, 2022. A final acceptance walk 

took place on November 4, 2022, and punch list items were identified.  The contractor has 
completed the punch list items and the District is awaiting the final acceptance letter from 
the City of Loveland. 

• City water/sewer warranty period expires on January 4, 2023. Final acceptance has been 
requested. 
 

15. Northwest Arterial Roadways Ph 2 Public Infrastructure (CFS #4) 
• City streets/storm warranty period expired on September 15, 2022. A final acceptance 

walk took place on November 16, 2022, and punch list items were identified.  The 
contractor is coordinating repairs of the punch list items and will request acceptance upon 
completion 

• City water/sewer final acceptance was received on October 12, 2022. 
 

16. Savanna 2nd/Kendall Parkway Phase 2 (Mainstreet to Rocky Mountain Ave) Public 
Improvements (CFS #2) 

• A final acceptance walk with the City of Loveland for streets/storm has taken place and 
punch list item have been identified.  The contractor is coordinating repairs of the punch 
list items and will request acceptance upon completion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

Parcel 504 Phase 2 Landscaping 

 

 

33



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

Parcel 301 Landscaping 

 

 

34



 
 

Offices Located in Loveland and Denver 
Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 

(970)669‐3611       (303)333‐4380 
www.PCGI.com 

Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

TO: Centerra Metropolitan District Board of Directors 

FROM: Brendan Campbell, CPA, Finance Director 
Irene Buenavista, Senior Accounting Manager 
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

SUBJ: Financial Memo 

DATE: 7/14/2023 

 
URA Revenue:  

Collection Month 
(Net URA 
Revenue) 

2022 
2022 % 

Collected YTD 
2023 

2023 % 
Collected YTD 

% Variance 

January 309,963 2% 275,726 2% 0% 

February 5,592,822 37% 4,851,577 29% -8% 

March 1,008,187 43% 1,436,922 37% -7% 

April 7,457,586 90% 8,246,286 83% -8% 

May 934,481 96% 1,226,667 89% -7% 

June 432,848 99% 4,322,193 114% 15%       

Totals 14,368,557 90% 20,359,372 114% 23% 
      

Budgeted Revenue 15,935,211 
 

17,930,579 
  

 

PIF Revenue: 
 
 

Collection Month 2022 2023 
 Variance  

Incr/(Decr) % Variance 

January 374,991  377,878  2,887  1% 

February 163,460  195,631  32,172  20% 

March 226,678  203,712  (22,966)  -10% 

April 250,065  255,146  5,081  2% 

May 230,767  243,967  13,200  6% 

June 240,427  242,853  2,426  1% 

Totals 1,486,388  1,519,186  32,798  2% 
 

35



 
 

Offices Located in Loveland and Denver 
Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 

(970)669‐3611       (303)333‐4380 
www.PCGI.com 

Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

Collection Month 2021 2022 
 Variance  

Incr/(Decr) % Variance 
January                374,991                 377,878                      2,887  1% 

February                163,460                 195,631                    32,172  21% 

March                226,678                 203,712                 (22,966) ‐11% 

April                250,065                 255,146                      5,081  3% 
Totals             1,015,193              1,032,366                 130,800  15% 

 

 PIF Revenue is only retained by the District for PIF collection fees and debt service payments if 
necessary. The District releases unused PIF collections to the Centerra Public Improvement Collection 
Corp. in September and December. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

 Operating expenses are anticipated to be under budget by $136k for the year.  Cost savings are 
anticipated in maintenance costs.  

 Based on current assumptions, capital projects expenses are expected to be under budget by $670k. 
 

 150,000

 175,000

 200,000

 225,000

 250,000

 275,000

 300,000

 325,000

 350,000

 375,000

 400,000

January February March April May June

Centerra PIF ‐Monthly Collections

2019 2022 2023

 350,000

 450,000

 550,000

 650,000

 750,000

 850,000

 950,000

 1,050,000

 1,150,000

 1,250,000

 1,350,000

 1,450,000

 1,550,000

January February March April May June

Centerra PIF ‐ YTD Collections

2019 2022 2023

36



 
 

Offices Located in Loveland and Denver 
Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 

(970)669‐3611       (303)333‐4380 
www.PCGI.com 

Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 
Finance and Accounting Projects 
 

 The District is waiting on receipt of the draft audit. An audit extension will be filed to allow for 
management and legal review before presentation at the August board meeting. 

 Quarterly and Annual bond compliance reports will be filed with the MSRB by the 8/15 deadline. 

 The budget process has begun. Draft budgets will be provided to the board by the 10/15 statutory 
deadline. Upcoming deadlines for District budgets: 
 

o August 25th – Deadline for County Assessors to provide preliminary assessed valuations. 
o October 15th – Deadline to provide proposed budgets to the Board. 
o December 10th – Deadline for County Assessors to provide final assessed valuations. 
o December 15th – Deadline to certify mill levies. 
o January 31st – Deadline to file adopted budgets with the State. 

 
 

37


	Agenda
	Minutes
	Payables
	Financials
	Contract Modifications
	Manager's Report
	Capital Infrastructure Report
	Financial Report



